
 
CLEARFIELD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

March 4, 2009 
7:00 P.M. - Regular Session 

 
PRESIDING:   Kenneth Jeppesen  Chairman 
 
PRESENT:   Matt Hartvigsen  Commissioner  

Darren Carpenter  Commissioner 
Bill Moore   Commissioner 

    Tyler Gibson   Commissioner 
    Nathan Dunn   Alternate Commissioner 
    Mark Bottema   Alternate Commissioner  
    Doyle Sprague   Council Liaison 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Brian Brower   City Attorney 
    Adam Lenhard  Community Development Director  
    Kent Bush   Planning/Zoning Administrator 

Gregg Benson   Planner 
Christine Horrocks  Building Permits Specialist 
 

VISITORS:   Max Arnett, Lisa Arnett, Gary Barlow, Kathryn Murray, Gary N.  
  Spencer 

 
Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Jeppesen.   
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM FEBRUARY 4, 2009 PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 
 
Commissioner Hartvigsen moved to approve the minutes as written, seconded by 
Commissioner Carpenter.  All Voting AYE. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:  CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A CHURCH TO LOCATE 
AT 354 SOUTH STATE 
 
Chairman Jeppesen declared the public hearing open at 7:01 p.m. 
 
Max Arnett, Pastor, said they would like to use the basement of this building to hold their 
religious services.  He said they have approximately 10 -12 members.  Commissioner Carpenter 
had concerns with the parking.  They meet in the evenings on weekdays and the businesses are not 
open on Sunday, therefore parking won’t be an issue.  Commissioner Hartvigsen asked what they 
would do for a sign.  Mr. Arnett said it will depend on the owner and they will meet city 
requirements.   
 



Clearfield City Planning Commission Minutes March 4, 2009 Page 2 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
FOR:   
Mr. Gary Barlow, owner of the property, said he would like a monument sign.  Gregg Benson said 
they would need to see a site plan.  He said there could be clear vision problems.   
 
Commissioner Hartvigsen moved to close the Public Hearing at 7:05 p.m. seconded by 
Commissioner Carpenter.  All Voting AYE. 
 
Commissioner Carpenter asked about the lighting.  Mr. Barlow said there are two lights over the 
door on the north side, on the west side there are three flood lights and on the southwest corner 
there are two flood lights that can shine into the parking lot.  The building opposite theirs also has 
lights on the side of the building.  Commissioner Carpenter said they wanted to make sure there 
was adequate lighting for the security of their members.  Commissioner Carpenter suggested the 
Conditional Use Permit be reviewed in six months.   
 
Commissioner Hartvigsen moved to approve this request for a Conditional Use Permit for a 
Church at 354 South State Street, with a review in six months, seconded by Commissioner 
Dunn.  All Voting AYE. 
 
  
SITE PLAN FOR AN ADDITION TO BUILDING C-14, FREEPORT CENTER 
 
Gary Spencer, Facility Engineer for ATK, said they have submitted plans to add a 24’ x 60’ 
building to house compressors.  It will be put adjacent to the existing buildings.  Kent Bush said 
the fire hydrant and water line were installed with the autoclave a short time ago.  All the utilities 
and infrastructure is installed.  They will only add a little access road.  Commissioner Hartvigsen 
asked if the road would be paved.  Mr. Spencer said it will be asphalted.  Commissioner 
Hartvigsen asked if the building would be fully enclosed.  Mr. Spencer said it is a metal building 
which will house two compressors and potential for a third one.  Commissioner Dunn asked what 
type of vehicles would be using the access road.  Mr. Spencer said there will a forklift, service 
maintenance truck, for installation there will be a truck to deliver the compressors. 
 
Commissioner Moore moved to approve this request for Site Plan Approval for an addition 
to Building C-14 in Freeport Center, seconded by Commissioner Carpenter.  All Voting 
AYE. 
 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
REVIEW R-2 ORDINANCE 
 
Adam Lenhard explained the changes that had been made.   Commissioner Carpenter asked if we 
could get rid of these zones.  Kent Bush explained if the properties were rezoned, there would be 
too many non conforming uses.  Brian Brower said vacant properties zoned R-2 could be 



Clearfield City Planning Commission Minutes March 4, 2009 Page 3 
 
reviewed and rezoned if found to be more conducive to the City’s goals.  Commissioner Dunn 
said in downtown Heber City they have allowed for two separate units on one lot with certain 
requirements being met.  Adam Lenhard asked how the Commissioners felt about having two 
dwellings on the same lot.  Commissioner Jeppesen said it is a good idea, but doesn’t see it 
happening in Clearfield.   Adam Lenhard said multi-family property needs to be landscaped prior 
to occupancy except in winter months.   It is recommended to have a cash bond in lieu of 
landscaping when the multi-family complex is completed in inclement weather.  Commissioner 
Carpenter said he felt the front elevation must have a minimum 3’ wainscot of brick, rock.  Kent 
Bush also suggested that any side facing the street have brick, rock, stone or stucco.  A site plan 
will be required on a multi-family building.   
 
Mr. Lenhard said that at the next meeting we will discuss the R-3, R-M and R-3 Redevelopment 
Zones.   
 
STAFF REPORTS 
 
Kent Bush – told the Commissioners they met with the architect working on the Davis Health 
Office Building.  He isn’t sure when they will be ready for Site Plan Approval.  If there are 
ordinances ready for discussion there will be a meeting.  He handed out material on the land use 
appeals and variances information.   He reminded the Commissioners about the Appeal Authority 
training which will be held in the city building on March 19th.    
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSIONER=S MINUTE 
 
Commissioner Jeppesen – nothing  
 
Commissioner Hartvigsen – asked if there has been any opposition to the Davis County Health 
building.  He was told no.   
 
Commissioner Moore – nothing  
 
Commissioner Carpenter – asked the status of the town homes that burned.  Adam Lenhard said 
we cannot condemn the building as long as the building is structurally sound and the building is 
secure.   
 
Commissioner Gibson – nothing  
 
Commissioner Dunn – nothing 
 
Commissioner Bottema – said he would call Val Dorius this week.   
 
Councilmember Sprague – said it is good to have a full house. 
 



Clearfield City Planning Commission Minutes March 4, 2009 Page 4 
 
There being no further business to come before the Planning Commission, Commissioner 
Carpenter moved to adjourn at 8:00 P.M.   


